0N O WN -

B W WWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDDN=2IL=22 A A a a aA aA
O WO NOO AP, WDN-0CDO0OO0ONOOODAOPRP,POON-_~CCOOONOOOGOP,OLODN-~OO©

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Thursday October 9 2025 7:00PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Members Present: Staff Present:

Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair) Abby Conroy (Land Use Director)

Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair) Miles Todaro (Land Use Technical Specialist)
Martin Whalen (Secretary) Attorney Charles Andres (Legal Counsel)

Bob Riva (Regular Member)
Allen Cockerline (Regular Member)

Brief Items and Announcements

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum

Chair Klemens called the Special Meeting to order at 7:00PM. A quorum was established with five
regular members present (Dr. Michael Klemens, Cathy Shyer, Martin Whalen, Allen Cockerline, Bob
Riva). Alternate Members Dr. Danella Schiffer and Beth Wells were not seated to vote, but were invited
to observe from the audience.

Motion: To approve the agenda.
Made by Riva, seconded by Whalen.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

2. Minutes of September 4, 2025 - pending
3. Minutes of September 9, 2025 - pending
4. Minutes of October 6, 2025 - pending
5. Minutes of October 7, 2025 - pending

Pending Business

6. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53
Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map
47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / OH: 08/05/2025 / CH: 09/09/2025 / Deliberation, Decision By
11/13/2025

Chair Klemens introduced the Commission, LUO (Land Use Office) Staff, and introduced the continuation
of deliberation.

Chair Klemens asked Attorney Charles Andres about the importance of referencing the Plan of
Conservation & Development (POCD) for or against the type of use for the proposed redevelopment.
Attorney Andres said the POCD had relevance in deliberation but was not specified as criteria for a
Special Permit. Chair Klemens and Vice Chair Shyer said the applicant made a case about consistency
with the POCD but they both disagreed. Chair Klemens asked Attorney Andres if the property was still
non-conforming if a Special Permit was authorized, he replied no.

Chair Klemens noted that “Cottage 1” was one-hundred nine feet from the closest abutting property,
“Cottage 3” was one-hundred seventeen feet, and “Cottage 4” was one-hundred twenty feet. Chair
Klemens believed the distance of the cottages to the neighbors and speculation of human behavior did
not warrant elimination of the cottages. Commissioner Cockerline asked if Town Consulting Acoustic
Engineer Herb Singleton recommended installation of a berm. LUD Conroy replied yes, he stated it
would be reasonable for the Commission to request a barrier or berm near the parking area. Chair
Klemens recommended seeking Mr. Singleton’s advice about installation.



41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Thursday October 9 2025 7:00PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Vice Chair Shyer mentioned George Logan noted four-hundred fifteen healthy trees on the property. She
said twenty trees for the parking area, thirty for the pool area, and fourteen near the existing hotel are
guaranteed to be removed, with the possibility for more. Chair Klemens noted that Buttonbush could be
utilized as plantings in the water retention basins to meet recommendations by George Logan and Town
Consulting Engineer Tom Grimaldi. Commissioner Cockerline noted few native trees were incorporated
on the planting plan.

Chair Klemens noted that installation of a berm would result in additional tree removal. Commissioner
Cockerline believed a berm should be installed prior to planting, and expressed concern that there was
not sufficient space to construct. Chair Klemens asked the Commission if they were comfortable with the
number of trees proposed for removal for the parking lot, Secretary Whalen, Commissioner Cockerline
and Riva replied yes. Vice Chair Shyer expressed concern about the potential impact of lights from cars in
the parking area. Chair Klemens suggested a concrete wall of a certain height could contain sound and
light spillage. Commissioner Cockerline recommended seeking advice about wall or berm installation
from Mr. Grimaldi, the Commission agreed.

Commissioner Cockerline mentioned inclusion of the Granbery parcel and believed the potential for
nuisance noise was speculative. He said the proposed redevelopment would result in a lower impact use
than the hotel’s current potential as a legal pre-existing use. Chair Klemens commented that merging the
properties enables the Commission to control how it is utilized. Vice Chair Shyer said she was
uncomfortable with a rural residential property being included into the application, and believed the
proposed redevelopment was too large for the community. Chair Klemens wished to see the project
reduced in size but was unsure the Commission had the evidence to reduce it, as opposed to just
speculation.

Vice Chair Shyer requested a report of daily traffic volume on Sharon Road and data on how
redevelopment would impact the existing volumes. Chair Klemens asked if traffic concerns raised by Vice
Chair Shyer provided evidence to warrant a reduction in size or type of activities proposed.
Commissioner Riva wished to discuss traffic data further. LUD Conroy asked if the Granbery parcel could
be utilized for the project without the properties being merged, such as a manager’s house. Attorney
Andres replied yes.

The Commission continued reviewing section 803 of the Zoning Regulations. Chair Klemens asked the
Commission if they believed the application complied with Section 803.2 “Relation of Buildings to
Environment.” Vice Chair Shyer was unsure, all other Commission members agreed it complied.

Commissioner Cockerline did not believe the proposed project was inappropriate, although large.
Secretary Whalen noted that it is not likely that the facility will constantly be booked to maximum
capacity.

Chair Klemens asked the Commission to take an informal straw poll for who would be in favor of the
application. Chair Klemens and Vice Chair Shyer voted no, while Secretary Whalen, Commissioner
Cockerline and Commissioner Riva voted yes. Chair Klemens asked the Commission to take a straw poll
for merging of the Granbery parcel. Chair Klemens, Secretary Whalen, Commissioner Cockerline and Riva
voted yes. Vice Chair Shyer voted no.



87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101

102

103

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

Thursday October 9 2025 7:00PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
Attorney Andres concluded that traffic, interpretation of “undue concentration” in the Zoning
Regulations, and the wall surrounding the parking lot would be investigated. Chair Klemens said
deliberation would continue on October 16, 2025 at 7:00pm.
Adjournment
Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 9:38PM.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,
Erika Spino

Secretary of Minutes



